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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FMS. HRC)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ng
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. BARB 78-675-P
PETI TI ONER Assessnment Contr ol

No. 40-02190- 02004
V.
No. 1 Surface M ne
DUNLAP COAL COVPANY,
RESPONDENT

DECI SI ON APPROVI NG SETTLEMENT

Appearances: Leo J. MG nn, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor
Department of Labor, for Petitioner
No one appeared at the hearing on behal f of Respondent

Bef ore :  Adm nistrative Law Judge Steffey

VWhen the hearing was convened on August 22, 1979, in the
above-entitl ed proceedi ng, counsel for the Mne Safety and Health
Admi ni stration requested that | approve a settlenment agreenent
whi ch had been entered into by the parties. Under the settlenment
agreenent, respondent would pay a civil penalty of $9.00 for an
al l eged violation of 30 CFR 71. 101 instead of the penalty of
$46. 00 proposed by the Assessnent O fice.

Counsel for MSHA stated that he had agreed to the reduction
in the proposed penalty because the alleged violation of Section
71.101 was cited prior to the amendnents contained in the Federa
M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977 which renoved the cl oud cast
upon all eged viol ations of the respirabl e-dust standards by the
opi nions of the former Board of M ne Operations Appeals in
Eastern Associated Coal Corp., 7 IBMA 14 (1976), aff'd on
reconsi deration, Eastern Associated Coal Corp., 7 |IBMA 133
(1976). Large nunbers of cases which arose during the period
when the Board's Eastern Associ ated opinions were in effect were
subsequently settled on a basis which ambunted to an average
paynent by the coal operators of $9.00 per alleged
respirabl e-dust violation. See, e.g., Judge Joseph B. Kennedy's
Order Approving Consent Settlenent and To Pay Civil Penalties
i ssued May 10, 1978, in Secretary of Labor (MSHA) v.
Consol i dati on Coal Conpany, et al., Docket Nos. VINC 76-76, et
al. | believe that fairness to other operators justifies
al |l onance of the settlenent figure of $9.00 for all civil-penalty
cases involving all eged respirabl e-dust violations occurring
prior to the anmendnent of the definition of "respirable dust” in
the 1977 Act.
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In addition to the equitable reasons given above for accepting a
settlement of $9.00, the official file shows that respondent
operated an extrenely small business enploying only two mners
who produced an average of approximately 22 tons of coal per day
(Tr. 4). Moreover, respondent's answer to MSHA's Petition for
Assessnment of Civil Penalty shows that respondent had taken the
requi red dust sanples, but the sanples had been returned to
respondent because of respondent's |ack of understandi ng about
the color of card which should have been used at the tinme the
sanmples were mailed to MSHA's Pittsburgh | aboratory. At the
present tine, respondent is not engaged in producing coal (Tr.
4).

Since a very snmall operator is involved and since there was
a good faith effort to conply with the respirabl e-dust standards,
I find that strong reasons exist to approve the settl enment
agreement in this instance.

VWHEREFORE, it is ordered:

(A) The settlenent agreenment submitted at the hearing by
counsel for MSHA is approved.

(B) Pursuant to the settlenent agreenment, Dunlap Coal
Conmpany shall, within 30 days fromthe date of this decision, pay
acivil penalty of $9.00 for the violation of 30 CFR 71. 101
alleged in MSHA's Petition for Assessnment of Civil Penalty filed
in Docket No. BARB 78-675-P.

Richard C Steffey
Admi ni strative Law Judge



